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BOURTON-ON_-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

2.+ CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
- .FOR THE YEAR ENDED .31 AUGUST 2021

The chairman'presents his statement for the year.

The reporting period was adversely influenced by the pandemic. When in lockdown (5th Nov = 2nd Dec and 6th
Jan - 8th Mar), the school continued to support the children of key workers and looked after children while
providing remote learning to those at home; on a typical day the school hosted' circa 100 vulnerable or key
worker children. When not in lockdown, it was necessary to educate children in “bubbles” to reduce the risk of
infection which impacted'on many of the softef aspects of Iearnung such as marntamrng concentratron abrlrty to
listen and completing work withina- given time. - :

Against this less than favourable background the school has performed very weII The whole team pulled

together with all members of staff going the extra mile to make things work and provide the best education « -~ - =2

possible. In addition, the school enjoyed considerable support from the local communlty ranglng from financial
help to purchase IT to support remote Ieamlng to cakes for staff.

Finances have remained sound although the Ioss of some expected income, extra expenses generated by the. .. .

pandemic and a number of members of staff taking early maternlty leave have requured the school to dip into its
reserves. . . ,

Notwithstanding the pandemlc there have been other srgnn" icant changes within the school, partrcularly a large' '
changeover in staff including the retirement of a number of key members of personnel. ' The number on role has
increased considerably (from 253 to 281), as has the number requiring SEN support. In November the school
was awarded a “Music Mark” from Gloucestershire Local Authority, which acknowledged the school's excellence
in music.

As we move out of the pandemic we have been able to recommence some normal activity including the return'of ™

. daily assemblies and the daily mile. Meetings of the Governing Body and its committees have resumed in
person and | believe the Governing Body contains a diverse and relevant set of skills and continues to effectnvely
challenge and support the Head Teacher.

The school has weathered the pandemlc well. Movmg ahead there are a number of pnorrtres — the' need to

support Years 2 and 3, which lost the most time to covid, continue of efforts to improve reading and phonics;
develop our intent document to provide a broad and balanced curriculum: re-engage with parents and continue -
to maintain our CARE ethos.

The last 2 years have been extremely diffi cult, however throughout the: team showed its mettle and we emerge :
from the pandemic well placed to deal wrth the challenges ahead. My overwhelming feeling for the future is one-
of optimism. . . _

Finally, while outside the repomng period the ‘'school ‘Underwent an HMI/Ofsted' mspectlon (13th 14th Oct) where )
it achieved a very strong “Good” assessment.

Chairman
} Date: 20 October 2021
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY AdADEMY :
(A company limited by guarantee) ' T

, » TRUSTEES' REPORT o
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

- The Trustees present their annual 'report together with- the- financial -statements and .auditors' report of the .
charitable company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021: The annual report serves the purposes of .
both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.:: -.. - - Co : -

" The trust operates an acaderﬁy for pupils aged 4 - 11 serving a catchment area in Bourton on the Water and

sutrcunding villages. It has a pupil capacity of 315 and had a:roll-of 275 .in the school census of October 2021. - -
~ Structure, governance and management TG BT o

Constitution 4 IR e
The Academy is a charitable company iimited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

: The. cha_ritable cgmpany's Memorandum of Assaociation is the primary govérhing documént of the Academy.

‘The Trustees of Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy are also the directors of the charitable company for the. |
purposes of company law. v R

" The charitable compary is known as Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to:the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative details on page 1. Vel s w e : o

" Members' Hability

. Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the -
-event of it being wound up while they are a member, or.within one:year after they cease to be a member, such
" amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and-liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
- .a member. R : L . .

* The Members are: -
Mrs Jane Pickup

~Mr Tim Newstead. A e e
Prof. Alan Gibbons S e e

_ Trustees' indemnities ‘ ‘ B R o

In accordance with Companies Act 2006 section 236, a number of insurances have been taken out to cover
claims arising out of errors, negligence and omissions during Academy business.

. MéthSd of recruitment and .appolntment or election of Trustees

Under the articles, the number of Trustees may be no less than, three. To that end, the Board of Trustees,
served by a Clerk, is made up of 8 Co-opted or Member's appointed Trustees, 3 Parent members, 2 Staff -
members and the Head Teacher. Associate members may also be appointed but have no voting rights. The
Members appoint Trustees to ensure a breadth of skills on-the body, taking people with backgrounds in law,
* business, human resources and building. Parent members are elected by ballot. The electorate is made up of
the parents from the Schools registered pupils. Associate Trustees are invited to join as they offer skills and
thoughts needed to boost the ‘capacity’ of the Board. .
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

' Structure, governance and management {continued)

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The induction, training and support offered to a trustee will vary depending on'the level of knowiedge of each
new appomtment Some general pnnctples exist:

A new Trustee will be inducted by an incumbent.
A new trustee will meet with the Head Teacher and Chair of Trustees :
Key documents for new Trustees will be provided via the Schoof's Virtual, Leaming Envnronment and will
include the Equality policy, the Safeguarding Policy and the Trustees Code of Conduct.

- A PowerPoint Induction file (reviewed annually) is available to all new staff and new Trustee who do not have
the opportunity to meet the Head Teacher prior to the first meeting.

> b=

Organisational structure

~.The management of the Trust consists of five levels. They are:

i o. The Board of Trustees. S S
e The Sub Committees (Staff and pupils, Teaching and leaming, Resources).
e The Senior Management Team (SMT) made up of Mr Jones, Mrs Connor, Mrs Kilbey and Mrs Teague.
. o The Administrative team made up of Mr Jones, Mrs Connor, Mrs Wilks, Ms Agg and Mrs Rogers.
o The pre-school manager - Mrs L Sorely. .

a

T, ) . _
" The aim is to devolve decision making to those who have most experience of the running of the school. The
. -#2SMT undertake management on a day-to-day basis. The Trustees support the SMT to manage the school by

_“* providing support, monitoring various standards and. holdmg decision making to account.

The budget is set by the Board of Trustees, which also sets targets for school improvement and manages the
performance appraisal of the Head Teacher. Policy statements are written and monitored to drive the decision
making process on a day-by-day basis. The SMT support the Trustees in the creation of such policies, the
analysis of data and undertaking monitoring of systems, reporting back to the Board.

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Bourton-on-the-Water Primary
Academy Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher, as accountmg officer,
for ensunng financial controls conform with the requirements of both propnety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer
is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control. o
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

. TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure, governance and management (continued)

Arrangements for settlng pay and remuneration of key management perscnnel

The Trust employs a School Partner to support them make decisions on the pay and remuneration of the Head
Teacher. To that end, a group of Trustees meet with Mr David Westall, an external advisor, to review and set
targets that go beyond the day to day running of the Trust and that ensure the success of the Trust. Following
this meeting the group report to the Staff and pupils Committee that makes a recommendation about
remuneration to the Board of Trustees. The Pay scale is limited to point 22 of the Leadership Scale.

The Head Teacher runs a perfcrmance appraisal of the_Deputy Head teacher and of the Pre-School manager. -
i Objectlves and activiti_esl |

Objects and aims

Our cbjectives are to:

Ensure pupils reach their full potential based on their starting points.

Improve the effectiveness of the Academy in producing a broad and balanced curriculum,
To ensure all business is carried out against the pnnclples of value for money.

Comply with all statutory obligations.

Maintain close links with all stakeholders.

Conduct all actwrty in.accordance to the highest standards of integrity, problty and openness

Our clear educatronal Mission Statement is to 'Challenge Amaze, Respect Enjoy.’ Our tag line - 'We CARE' -
. underpins every aspect of school life and is key to ensurmg high levels of motivation, enthuslasm and excltement
iin leaming. : '

Our aims are to:

o Challenge ourselves so that we $how determination to improve and succeed.

e Amaze ourselves so that we celebrate the achievements of others and ourseives.
» Respect ourselves so that we look after each other, our community and ourselves.
» Enjoy ourselves so that we achieve our potential and gain skills for life.

‘Objectives, strategies and activities -

Our key activities and strategles for 2020/21 were |dent|ﬁed in our publically publlshed School Development Plan
(SDP). They were to:

Chaltenge Pupils by developlng our Readlng and Phonics programmes and resources.
Amaze Pupils by setting clear leaming areas across the curriculum. .
Respect Each ‘Other and-Our Community by giving parents a better understandrng into the workmgs of the
school.

e Enjoy School following a year of uncertainty.

The continuing of the Covid-19 Pandemic meant that the SDP was postponed in May 2021 and targets ensuring -
staff and pupil safety through regular risk assessment and the delivery of some online Ieamrng became the

priority.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee) h

" TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
"FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)

Public benefit

The core purpose is to supbort the local communlty'by providing high quality education as recognised by Ofsted
and through published results Details can be found on the school and Ofsted websutes On top of this the public
have benefitted from:

The use of the facilities.

The provision of support services through the parental support advisor who sngnposts ald to famnlres

The provision of Pre-School service for the community on the site.

The provision of out of school-hours childcare through the breakfast club, out of hours club and holiday club.
The provision of a Nurture Hub that allowed Parents and Children from other schools to develop strdnger
relatlonshlps and trust.

Provision for high quality Professional Development Tralmng Courses for Teachers across Gloucestershlre
Provision of First Aid Training for Staff from Schools across the cluster and parents

Support for colleague Head Teachers across the County.

Support for Families in the cluster through Multi Agency meetings.

In setting our objectives and planmng our activities -the Trustees have carefully consldered the Charity
Commission's general guidance on public beneﬁt

Strateglc report

Achievements and performance
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Stratagic report (continued)-

Achievements and performance (continued)

Key performance indicators

-~ The Boardof Trustees and Staff normally review thé School's performance-at an end of year. conference.::.~

. . However, the pandemic meant that this had to be postponed to September 2021 and therefore falls outside the -
scope of this report. . -

However. the Trustees acknoMedged success in the follcwmg areas:”

The use of remote leaming to support pupils during lockdown.
The use of risk assessment and precautionary steps to limit days lost due to Covid.

o . Careful management of resources to ensure the school did. not fall-into a def cit budget desplte extra costs . .-

and loss of income.
Staff support for over 100 pupils to attend school during Iockdowns
» Systems to keep parents informed during this difficult period and welfare contact twrce a week to those
. vulnerable or disadvantaged pupils not attending school.
Completion of the first cycle of the new curriculum.
Award of the Music mark.

- A number of self-evaluative processes allowed the Trustees to monitor the SDP as.written, although the nature
of the year meant that pnontles changed to more welfare and staff support until May-2021. :

in terms of Key Performance Indicators (KPls) the following wereset.m September 2020:

KPI:~

7+ Outcome:

KPI:

" Qutcome:

KPI:

Outcome:

KPI:

OQutcome:

KPL:.

Outcome:

KPI
Outcome:

To ensure the long-term success of the Academy.

Partially met, although the target to increase reserves was not met due to Covnd loss of income
and extra expenses. However the reserves were maintained. Following concems last year, the
ﬁnancial benchmarking tool compared the school favourably to the norm on staff pay.

Accelerated progress in Reading.
Partially met. Despite time loss, Teachers put tralmng and new systems in place and Support Staff -
to develop early reading practlces . . .

* Review and Update practice - post Covid.- -
[Fully met. A series of training sessions identifying 'back to normal’ pedagogy was held and
observatnons in the summer term found practices to be strong. .

Review and update Maths Curriculum and Coverage. :
Fully met. The curriculum and calculation pollcy were reviewed: and updated

To judge our curriculum intent by measunng pupil attainment and progress across the curriculum.’
Not met due to Covid.

To improved parental engagement as recognised in survey results. ’
Partially Met — parents recognised the engagement but sessions around supporting reading, maths

and anxiety were cancelled due to Covid 19, as were parental visits to classes.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
' , - (A company limited by guarantee) .'

.- “TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achleyements and performance (continued)
Going concern '

After making appropnate enquiries the Board ‘of Trustees has a reasonable expectatlon that the academy trust

has adequate resources to. continue its operatronal existence for the foreseéable future. Funding lag,’ foIIowmg' ;

the extensive build has now caught up. Delays in funding of higher needs caused by Covidhad an impact in the
year but-no deficit was registered. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

. financial statements. Further detalls regardmg the adoptlon of going concem basts can be found in the I

Statement of Accounting Pohcres . S
A .Promoting the success of the company

 The Trustees, through their annual review of Terms of Reference and setting of key performance lndlcators for
“each committee ensure they have due regard to the Compames Act 2006 - Sectron 172(1)(a). In reaching
-%decisions the Trustees consider:

"3

. +The likely consequences of any decnsnon in the long term.

The interests of the company’s employees.

The need to foster the company’s business relationships with supphers. customers and others.
%3 The impact of the company’s operations.on the community and the environment.

. .aThe desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

- The need to act falrly as between members of the company.
¥
© The Board of Trustees regularly revuew the Risk Reglster for the Academy at all its’ meetings in order to mamtam
- good practice. -

Financial review

The Trustees undertook a review with the ESFA in order to test its finances. This review found that the Trust:

- Spent more on support staff wages than other comparator schools
- Had fewer reserves than most comparator schools |

As a result, actions were taken to remedy both fi ndlngs mcludlng using natural wastage as a means to reduce
staff spend. Unfortunately, the reserves were not increased in year as the pandemlc had an impact on planned
income (income to support pupils with EHCP delayed by 6 months, suspension of the pre- school and parents

~ working from home) and the extra costs associated with staff matermty (had to go on matemlty 3 months earlier
than planned) and iliness were not refunded

in Short:
- The In Year result was a break-even posmon - this reﬂects careful management.
- The Revenue Reserves are £37,000.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantes)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Reserves pollcy

The..Academy Reserves statement is ‘that the Academy should not hold Reserves in excess of £30 000.
Following a review with the ESFA, this has been amended. A target istoi mcrease reserves through 2021/22.
The current Ievel of money in the bank is £142,154.

The budget set for 2021/22 is far more robust. AIthough unsupported pay awards increases to employer
- National Insurance Levels and the unseen costs associated with any future Covid 19-cannot be estimated given * -

" that: such awards .fall outside the Trust's control but-had an impact in year. However. More robust risk . -

management and reactive procedures are in place followmg the difficulties. expenenced in 2020/21.

) Investment polrcy

The frust has a savmgs account. lnvestment strategy and pollcy is part of the wider Flnance Policy that is

- _ reviewed annually by the Trustees.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Principal risks and uncertainties

A risk assessment is reviewed monthly The followrng have been identified by the Trustees as risks to be
managed in the foreseeable future:

Head Teacher succession planning — The trust relies heavily on the effectiveness of the-Head Teacher. His
_intention to take a phased retirement could impact on the future development/success of the Trust. :
Risk is managed by: - A
- Through developing the role of Co Head Teacher with the current Deputy. -
- - Developing staff to undertake other roles in leadership areas.
C - Joint Co Head performance Management process.

National Pay awards — The Trust has always passed on the pay awards as agreed by the Minister.- An increase
in staff pay falls outside of the budgetrng setting period and reports suggest this wrll be above the 4% lnﬂatlon
rate in April 2022
Risk is managed by:

- Maintaining levels of reserves.

- Careful cash flow planning and monthly review.
- ldentifying income raising initiatives.

- Managing in year appointments.

Under Performance — The Trust requires learning as measured by statutory KS2 assessment to be at least at
the norm. . .

Risk is managed by:

- A thorough self-evaluation process monitored by the Trustees

- Performance management of teaching staff led by the SMT and reported to Trustees.

- Understanding and implementing change through a School development Plan based on research.

Building — The Trust requires the building to be fit for purpose and safe

Risk is managed by:

- Appointment of an operations manager supported by the Resource Committee.

- A Maintenance programme monitored by Trustees.

- Strategic decision making by the FGB in relation to future build after reports from the Head Teacher.
- ‘Review and testing of statutory policies and procedures.

Children with SEND - The Trustees are aware that Gloucestershrre Local Authonty is looking to withdraw levels
of funding for pupils with SEND. .

Risk is managed by:

- Carefully review pupils’ needs through the current practices.

- Reviewing the role of Teaching assistants in the school.

- Looking at npw ways of meeting need.

Reserve Depletion due to Covid 2019.

Risk managed: _

- Careful review of cash flow on a monthly basis.

C - Audit of staffing in April prior to setting new budget.

- Risk Assessment of natural wastage around MDSU and TA when staff leaves.

- - Monthly reporting of spending to the Resource Committee using a cash flow spread sheet.

Failures in Compliance.

Risk is managed by:

- Value for money exercises to ensure related party transactions are suitably assessed
- Informing EFSA of related party transactions and ‘extra-ordinary ‘ payments.

- Removal of Trustees where transactions are over-the £500 limit.
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‘ BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

"TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 -

Fundraising

Fundraising for the trust comes under the Friends of Bourton School, a chantable Parent-Teacher organlsatron
unrelated to the Trust.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting .

- As the Academy has not consumed more than 40,000kWh of energy in this reporting period it qualifies as a low

energy user under these regulations and is ‘not required to report on its emlssmns energy consumptlon or
energy efficiency activities . ‘ ,

Plans for future periods

The key objectives for 2021-22 are to provrde resourcing to allow for:

A surplus budget for 20/21 and a 3 year forecast of surplus budgets in order to create greater level of
reserves

Ensure Pupils return to school, post Covid-18 and support is offered to those falling behind, emotionally hurt
or causing concern as a result

To improve Teacher IT knowledge A

To continue to develop Reading practices

To develop Maths problem solving practices

To work closely with parents

Apply to become a MAT

Have a successful Ofsted in 2021/22

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The Trust holds funds for the COSMIC group of North Cotswold Head Teachers. . -

~ Disclosure of information to auditors

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

there is no relevant audit information of Which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
* that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors -

p-

The atrditors Randall & Payne LLP were reappointed to the Articles of Association.

The Trustees' report incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 10 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

~ (A company limited by guarantee) 4

. TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

................................................

Mr S Gurmin
(Chair of Trustees)
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scopse of responslblllty

T As Tmstees we acknowledge we have overall responS|b|I|ty for-ensuring that:Bourton-on-the-Water Primary . =
+ Academy has an effective and appropriate system of control;financial and otherwise. However, such a system is

~designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to.achieve business objectlves and can provide only'
reasonable and not absolute assurance agamst matenal mlsstatement orloss.

.. As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the gundance in DfEs Govemance Handbook and'
competency framework for governance. o S

- .7 .The Board of Trustees has delegated the day—t’o—day’ 'responsibility to the Head Teacher , as accounting officer,’
.. for: ensunng financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and- in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also
responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

"GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

-~ The information on govemance included here. supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the

statement of trustees’ responsibilities. The Board of Trustees was unable to meet in-person during the' covide
lockdowns, however, virtual meetings were arranged. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 tlmes dunng the

. year, mcludmg one meetlng with the audntors

‘Meetings were held: on 23/9/20 24/1 1/20(v)' 9/12/20 28/1/21(v), 25/3/21 27/5/21

Attendance dunng the year at meetmgs of the Board of Trustees was as follows

‘ ’ Trustee»; : : . | Meetmgs attended - Out ofapossnble .
" 'Mr S Gurmhin, Chair N

-Mrs H Gainford, Vice Chair

MrD Souch
Mr T Williams
Mrs J Kilbey.

Mrs T Teague, Staff Governor
Ms S Oughton
Ms Fiona Formby
Ms V Browning
Mrs A Roberts -
Mr G Hyland

Mr M Goss

Mr W Morgan
Rev R King

Mr C Wilsdon

ONANNNNAWONRNNO =D
”mmAmwmm&mbmmmamd

The Trustees accepted all absences.

o Trustees meeting with the auditors.
(v) A virtual meeting.

Governance reviews
As part of the cycle of committee meetings the Terms of Reference are reviewed and the Key Performance

Indicators for the committee are updated to ensure the committee’s work supports. the SDP (see Performance
Indicators in Trustees report). .

Staff and Pupils Committee - 2020/2021
Key Performance Indicators:

* 1, Staff and Pupils should feel safe in School during the Pandemic.

A “rolling” Risk Assessment was created to ensure all pupils and staff was kept safe throughout the year.” Staff
was given opportunity to discuss this risk assessment at three points within the year in order to have a voice. The
number of bubble closure and cases of Covid amongst staff and pupils was well below the natlonal and local
picture. Staff surveys found staff to feel both safe and supported during this period.

KPl: Achieved.

2. Vulnerable and Disadvantaged Pupils in Y4-6 to be carefully monitored and supported.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The Year.6 end of year survey found pupils transitioning to feel better prepared than those from other schools.
Non disadvantaged pupils but close monitoring and support saw attendance for this group rise from December to
July. Attendance of disadvantaged pupils was not as strong as

KPI :- Achieved . |
3. SENand D pupils need to be carefully s'ubpr)néd pr;st pandemic
KPI:  Achieved. : :

The Committee placés particular emphasis on: - S

Safeguarding and PREVENT:
Looked After Children.

The progress of SEND pupils.
General Date Protection Regulations.

Other areas for which the Committee holds responsibility include, but are not limited to:

e All aspects of Safeguarding, Looked After Children and PREVENT, including the provision of necessary
policies, framework, and reporting mechanisms.

~ o Regular review of the school's performance against national statistics for specific vulnerable groups

including SEND and Pupil Premium. A

e Provision of guidance and assistance to the Head Teacher and Goveming Body on all matters relating to
personnel issues, performance management, training, pupil welfare, safeguardmg, the school in the
community, and extended services.

¢ Oversee the school's adherence to GDPR.

e Making proposals for and approve class and staff structures within.the constraints of the school's budget.

e Take part in staff recruitment, promotion and severance (including redundancy) making use of County
approved systems and in accordance with the Trustees’ policies.

‘e Undertake and implement the Head Teacher's performance management including making
recommendations to the Governing Body on the Head Teacher’s pay award. :

« In consultation with the Head teacher, consider each years School Improvement/Development Plan and
post-Ofsted Action Plan priorities related to pupil /staff well-being, and monitor Continuing Professional
Development and coaching support priorities.

¢ Review the Performance Management procedures at the school and ensure that the cycle is carried out
annually.

¢ Undertake and analysis the results of parent/pupil surveys in order to monitor the impact of school
improvements.

« Monitor the value and suggest |mprovements to the School's Ilalson with Parents and the wider community,

" including feeder playgroups and secondary providers.

Monitor the dffectiveness of communication between the school and parents

[ ]

e Oversee and, when necessary, arbitrate the school's “In year” admissions policy.
e Support the Head Teacher in the establishment of a Multi-Academy Trust.

e Generate and review all policies and Codes of Conduct relating to staff and pupils.
Membershrplattendance

Dates of meetings - 15/9/20, 17/11/20, 19/1/21, 16/3/21, 17/5/21).
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BOURTON-QN-TH_E-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee) '

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee - ' . Méetings attended Out of a possible

S Gumin (Chair) 5

J Jones (Headteacher) '
.F Formby

H Gainsford .

J Kilbey

R King

J Pickup

L Connor. *
" M Rogers (Gov Pro / Clerk)

pwsamabbhon
b

Teaching and learning Committee —2020 - 2021

To ensure that the school track and respond to the performance of pupils:
Curriculum meetings regularly meet with data, Maths and Literacy leaders throughout the year with a clear focus
how to support pupils to attain greater depth in Reading, Writing and Maths in both KS1 and 2. They took part in
Q & A sessions and learned from staff presentations detailed evidence of attainment and progress. The result is
that the Trustees were clear about the tracking systems and the impact of benchmarking. T&L Trustees
_participated in @ moderation exercise with both English and Maths leads to support the schools SPS (school
,point system). The Trustees were keen to view the work undertaken by staff to make sure these ARE being met
“successfully. Data highlights form part of the curriculum agenda throughout the year to track the performance of

all leaders to leam about coverage and assessment systems as well as PSHE, RE, PE, Geography and History.

Due to covid most data analysis was restricted due to lack of SATS results, so the school have been focusing o

data from 2019 resuits, we are meeting all expectations. KPl met : : :

- To ensure Tééching non-negotiables were applied:

‘The committee reviewed the key non-negotiables identified in the SDP. These statements formed a report
template for Govemor visits. As a result, observations found that non negotiables were in place consistently
across the school reflecting the Teaching pedagagy.promoted by the Trustees. KPI met . )

To ensure the school provides a balanced curriculum:

‘The T&L policy reflects the leaming led approach to the curriculum, including brain breaks, effective questioning
. and calm approach to-the start of every lesson. _

Leaming Walks allowed the Trustees to see a variety of subjects on show. Meetings with subject leads
evidenced that the school was following a broad curriculum and allowing children many opportunities to leam
and experience other subjects than English and Maths. IT was a focus this year, linking in from the previous year
on-a 2-year cycle. : : o . '
Remote léaming at the start of 2021 was a focus of the committee and making sure that medium term plans
were successfully met. Some targets and topics of work were adjusted because of on-line learning and additional
emphasis on pastoral, PSHE and mental health to support the retum of the pupils to the classroom and
curriculum. KPI met . : ' -

Membership/attendance
Dates of meetings - 16/9/20 , 18/11/20, 20/1/21, 17/3/21, 19/5/21 .
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
‘ . (A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

Trustee ! "Meetings attended Out of a possible
A Roberts (Chair) 5 5
S Gurmin 5 5
G Hyland 5 5
M Goss 5 5
W Morgan .- 4 5
T Teague 5 5
JPickup 3 . 5

_ Resources Committee 2020-2021

The Resource Committee play an lmportant role in:
°  Monitoring the school spend and ensuring it is getting value for money
Confirming there is a system of internal control
Reviewing the key risks and ensuring the school has the capacity to handle them
Ensuring the risk and control framework is fit fof‘purpose
Reviewing regularly the effectiveness of internal control
Act as the audit committee
Act as a monitor of the Premises as a- w:der resources

o © o6 o0 o0 o

Key Performance Indicators:

‘e~ -Budgetary Management: Did the committee manage funds in line with the school budget? Measure: Did we
finish the year within 5% of the proposed budget surplus/contingency

" 'During the meetings thé committee reviewed the spendlng of the Academy against its proposed budget using -

- “both a review of bank statements, the cash flow forecast and Debtors review. Concerns were raised at the mid

year with regard to the loss of income (income that was expected but did not arrive) and the extra costs
assdciated with staffing during the pandemic, including the extra costs associated with early maternity. At the

' - -end"of the year the school has seen a break-even but acknowledged the fi nanclal difficulties associated with

Covid were and continue to be a risk.
KPI - Partially Met

. o Strategic Finance Objectives: Committee to undertake actions agreed following its SRMA review.

The Covid 19 outbreak and lockdown meant that the i mcome generation of the OSC and Holiday club was hugely

" impacted and staff costs difficult to manage especially around absence, cover and extra sypport for pupils in
arder to ensure dlsadvantaged pupils continued to progress :

~ KPI - Met

“Compliance & Best Practice: Committee to monitor spending against other comparator schools to ensure
best value. Measure: All ESFA comparisons at least in line with. comparator spends.

The Commntee considered all recommendations arising from the auditor's report, undertook its financial
" benchmarking tasks and discussed a review with the ESFA. All ESFA deadhnes for retums were met. School
spends agamst comparator schools were at least in Ime with. .

KP{ - Met
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance '(continued) ’

Membership/attendance - :
»Dates of meetmgs 16/9/20, 19/1 1/20 21/1/21 23/3/21 13/5/21

Trustee . : : Meet(ngs attended - Out of a possible

Mr M Goss (Chair) ' - 5.
MrJapR Jones (Headteacher / Accountmg ; 5 © 5
Officer)

.. Mrs A Wilks (Chief Fmance Offi cer) 5

.. Mr G Hyland. L .3
- MrS Gumin L : 4
Mrs A Roberts 0
MrD Souch . 0

-MrC Wllsden (from May 2021) 0

osvnaag
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. BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

- Review of value for money

As accounting ofﬁoer. the Head Teacher ‘has resp‘onsibilrty for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accountlng officer understands that'value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in retum for the taxpayer resources received. .

The accounting officer consrders how the Academy's use of its resources ‘has provided good value for money

" - during each academic year, and reports-to the Board of Trustees.where value for money-can be improved,

including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate.. - SIS

The accounting officer for the Academy has dellvered rmproved value for money dunng the year by:
o Monrtonng spends. : 3

' This is done:

By signing off orders, invoices and cheques.

¢ Monitoring of the Chart of Accounts.with the Finance Officer.

¢ Preparing reports for the ESFA with the Finance Officer. .

® Checkrng the monthly bank reconcrhatron

L 4

K Benchmarkmg spends against other similar Schoots
*° Thisis done:
¢ By measunng staff numbers against other schools of a srmrlar size

e Ensurtng that Best Value Pnncrples as set out in the Frnance Policy.are adhered to.
° ' This is done:

¢ By preparing reports for the Trustees
¢ Asking for reviews of the Finance Policy

- e« Responding to Audit reports.
° . This is done: :
o Through carefully reading reports and amendrng the Schools risk assessment accordlngly
¢ Setting and implementing action plans : :
. Respondmg to ESFA regulations and requests for clarification: - -
o Undertaking a review of insurances.
o Amended staffing hours.
°  This is done: ' :
¢ Through a PM cycle with Teachers.
o Responding to needs of pupils.
¢ Undertaking audits of performance.
¢ Responding to concerns and complaints.

e Fulfilling SEN and D statutory regquirements.

o Fuifiling Safeguarding Practices..
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal.contro! is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
- those risks being realised and the.impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has-been in place in Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy for the
year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial

statements. A . . - i

- Capacity to handle risk -

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
.. of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy’s
. significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and .up to the date of

$pproval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
.. Trustees. ' : S -

' 'l"he risk and control framework

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of reguiar rﬁaﬁagerﬁent information
~ and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
" In particular, itincludes: ' ‘ o

- ® comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and pericdic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees _

o regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial

" performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure

programmes - . .
setting targets to measure financial and other performance )
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
identification and management of risks ' . ,

The Board of.Trustées 'has de_cided,not to appoint an internal auditor. However, the Trustees have appointed -
Yuhong Meads, the Financial Director of Blockley C of E Academy, to perform a peer review. '

The reviewer's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on '
the Academy's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

o Testing of recruitment processes. : ’

o Testing of business continuity processes.

o Testing of control account / bank reconciliations.

On a quarterly basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the audit and risk committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities and
annually prepares a short annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.
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'BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY .
(A company limited by guarantee) N

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness -

As accounting officer, the Head Teacher has responsrb:hty for reviewing the effectlveness of the system of
: |nterna| control. During the year.in question the rewew has been mformed by: ) ;

the work of the reviewer;
the work of the external auditors;
the financial management-and governance self—assessment process )
" the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responS|b|I|ty for the development and
maintenance of the mternal control framework .

The accounting officer has been advused of the rmpllcatlons of the result of their review of the system of internal
“control by the audit and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in. place : :

~

Approved-by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on and signed on their behalf by:

................................................

Mr S Gurmin
Chair of Trustees

Date: 10 December 2021
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT Ohi.REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy | have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Board of Trustees and the Education and :Skills Funding Agency.(ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms ‘and ‘conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the
funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

1 confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregalar or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy s funding agreement and the Academles Flnanc1al Handbook 2020.

I confirm that the follownng mstances of matenal lrregulanty, lmpropnety or fundmg non- comphance discovered to
date have been notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA. If any instances are identified- after-the date of th|s .
statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA:

- 2.18 of the Academies Trust Handbook 2021 states that “The trust must prepare managément accounts every
month setting out its financial performance and position” The trust has not prepared management accounts in
thelr entlrety for each of the 12 months in the year ended 31 August 2021.

Accounting Officer
Date: 10 December 2021
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' BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

-The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
“Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Co‘mpany law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
- the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they. are satisfied that they give a true and fair

~...view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,

" including ltS income and expenditure, for that penod In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
. required to:

R select suitable accounting pollcres and then apply them consistently;
‘o observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
, 2020 to 2021;
. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any material departures
' disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
o ' prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

) chantable company will continue in busmess

14

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
: the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the’ charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection. of fraud and other irregularities.

‘The Trusteks are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform .with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensunng grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended. .

". The: Trustees are responsible for the marntenance and integrity of the corporate and financial mformatlon
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

: 'Abpr"oved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 10 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

................................................

© Mr S Gurmin

(Chair of Trustees)
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: BOURTON;ON;THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy (the ‘academy’) for the
year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the
- statement of cash flows and the related notes, lncludmg a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
- Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practcce) ‘including Financial Reporting
- Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the'UK and- Republlc of -lIreland’, the Charities -
SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Educatlon and Skills Fundlng
, Agency , O ¥

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its mcommg
. ' ‘resources and application of resources, including its income and expendlture for the year then ended;
K have been properly prepared in accordance with United Klngdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
, " Practice; and
e " "have been prepared in  accordance with the requlrements of the Companies’ Act 2006, the Charities SORP
. 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Fundlng
' Agency

. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
-law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit

of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the- Academy in -accordance with the

ethical. requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in-the United Kingdom, including

the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other -ethical:responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements. We believe that’ the audit evxdence we- have obta:ned is sufficient and
. appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion. ; -

Conclusions relating to going concern A

In auditing the financial statements we have concluded that the Trustees” use o‘_“ the gomg concern basis of .
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the- AcademYs ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to gomg concern, are described in the
relevant sections of this report [
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY (CONTlNUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other lnformatron we are reqmred to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescrlbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report- including the- Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements. . .

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understahding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the followmg matters in relation to which the Compames Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e - adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
- received from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not. made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO lTHE MEMBERS OF
BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY (CONTINUED) :

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the

Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsuble for the preparation of the financial statements and

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that ‘are free from material misstatement, whether .
due to fraud or error. .

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academys ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operatlons
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. S .

Auditors’ responsibillties for the audit of the financial statements

‘Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
lrregularities. including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to .detect material misstatements in respect of irregulantles
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting lrregulantles including fraud is
detalled below:

A further descnotlon of our responsmllmes for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's: website at. www.frc.org. uk/audltorsresgonsmlhtle This descnptron forms part of our
auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report i is made solely to the Academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsnbllrty to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

. A ' " N
Z 0\/\./ CoQ : '
Ryan Moore Cumltor)

for and on behalf of
Randall & Payne LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

13 December 2021
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
‘(A company limited by guarantee)

. INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BOURTON-
ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 3rd December 2019 and further to the

© -~ requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts

- ‘Direction 2020 to 2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the
- expenditure disbursed and income received by Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy during the year 1
" ‘September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identifi ed by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities whlch govemn them. :

 This report is made solely to Bourton-on-the—Water Primary Academy and ESFA in accordance with the terms of
" our éngagement letter. Our'work has been undertaken so that we might state to Bourton-on-the-Water Primary
-*Academy and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
+ extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Bourton-on-the-Water
Primary Academy and ESFA, for our work, for this report or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy's accounting officer and
the reporting accountant .

- The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Bourton-on-the-Water Primary Academy's

funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 7th February 2012 and the Academies
*Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
© teceived is applied for the purposes mtended by Parliament and the financial transactlons conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Our ‘responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
-guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
- requrrements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
*"to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
" intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in aocordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defi ned in our engagement letter.- A

The objectlve of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and »
* ‘explanations in order to provide us with. sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

- A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance -engagement and
* consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that

" might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordlngly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY '
. (A company limited by guarantee)

* INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO BOURTON-

. ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY. ACADEMY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
, " (CONTINUED)

.Conclusion

~ In the course of our. work except fcr the matters listed below nothing has come to our ‘attention whxch suggest m 'A L
all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31
August 2021 has not been applied to purposes intended. by Parliament and the financial transactions do.not . . . .-

conform to the authontres which govem them

- '2.18 of the Academles Trust Handbook 2021 states that “The trust must prepare management accounts every o
- month setting out its financial - performance and position” The trust has not prepared management accounts in

their entirety for each: of the 12 months in the year ended 31 August 2021

| ?gw/a// Q

Randall

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

Date: 13 December 2021

¢
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantes)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
: FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 :

: Restricted’ ‘
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset - Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2021 .2021 2021 2021 2020
Note £000 £000 -£000 £000 . £000
. Income from: . | L :

- - Donations and capltal R L e »
. grants '3 . 12 24 1,026 i 1,062 . 56
© Other trading activities .* - L A L o182

_ Charitable activites = - 1,344 - 1344 - 1,275
Expenditure on: S o o :
Raising funds .3 o7 - 139 129
Charitable activities 7 - 1,483 LI 1,594 1,498
Other unallocated ~ L. ' el - 1) 5
ngas expenditure 33 01,580 . 111 | T34 1,627
Net , . : '

: mcomeliexpendlture) : : 49 (151). . - ~. 918 813 (114)
Transfers between - : o o .
funds R V4 (26) - . 26 - ‘. -
‘Net movement in : S
funds before other
recognised e — » 4
gains/(losses) 23 © o 128) - 915 B3 " (114)
Other recognised ' o LTS e .
gains/(losses): ‘

Actuarial (losses)/gains » R

- on defined benefit S SRS - : :
pension schemes - 23 - _ - -(229)- - (229) 1
‘Net movement in 23 o (354) - 915 584 (113)
funds . - —_— e e .
Reconciliation of -
funds: : , _

Total funds brou ht o :

forward o 14 1) 3537 - 2,840 2,953
Net movement in funds 23 - (354) 91§ 584  (113)
Total funds carried 37 1,065) 4,452 3424 2840

forward —_— e, —— o

The notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of these financial statements.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATéR PRIMARY ACADEMY |

'(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 08321599

.. BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

. 2021 . 2020
Note _ £000 : . £000
Fixed assets - , : . '
Tangible assets 13 4449 . 3,390
. 4449 " 3390
Current assets _ _ ‘ :
Debtors - 14 43 ‘ . ‘84 -
Cash atbankandinhand = 142 , .- 238
: : ) 185 : 322
_Creditors: amounts falling due within one » _ .
year . . : . 15 (145) . (138)
* Net current assets 40 T 184
.. Total assets less current liabilities - | 4489 . 3574
Net assets excluding pension liability = 4,489 - 3,574
3 Defined benefit pension scheme liability . . 23. (1,065) . ' (734)
Total net assets 3,424 ' © . 2,840
Funds of the Academy
‘Restricted funds: , )
Fixed asset funds ST 4,452 ' ‘ 3,537 :
Restricted income funds - 17 - 23 .
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 17 . 4,452 t 3,560
Pension reserve 17 (1,065) ' ‘T34
Total restricted funds 17 3,387 ' " 2826
Unrestricted income funds 17 37 : 14
_ ~ , —_
‘Total funds 3,424 . 2,840
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

{A company limited by guarantee) -
-REGISTERED NUMBER: 08321599

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

The financial statements have been prepared i in accordance with the provisions appllcable to entities subject to
the small companles regtme

The financial statements on pages. 30 to 65 were approved by the Trustees, and authonsed for issue oﬁ 10
December 2021 and are signed on theur behalf, by‘

Mr S Gutmm ' .
- Chair of Trusiees

Date: 10.December 2024

The notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of these tinancial statements.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
" (A company limited by guarantee)

_ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
- 'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

, Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net s}n provided by operating‘ actiyiﬁes - ‘ ' 19
cash ﬂowé from inQeé_tihé activitieé | | 20
Change in:ca.%h aﬁd_ cash equAi'vai_le'rv\t's in the ye_ar |
Cash and cash equivalents at thé' beginning 6f'thé year
Cé#h and §ash equivalents a_t the end of theyear - 21,22

The notes on pages 34 to 65 form part of these financial statements

.. 2021 2020
' £000 £000
1,051 s

" (1,148) @

L em 3L

. 239 2’0'7

142 2%
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
" (A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies

1.4

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consustently.
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basls of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entrty under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: -
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting. Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. ‘

Bounon-on-thewWater Primary Academy meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS

102,

Geing concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate.i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that:may cast:significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a

‘period of at-least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and

have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continus in -operational existence for -

- _ the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy’s ability to continue

as'a going concem, thus they:continue to-adopt the- gomg concem basns of accountlng in preparing -
the financial statements. ,
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
- (A.company limited by guarantee)

" . NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

(¥

s,
i3 53 E

]

S

Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entltlement to the funds the recelpt is

_probab|e and the amount can be measured rellably

B Grants

Grants are included in: the statement of ﬁnancnal actrvntles on a recelvable basls The balance of

. income recelved for- specrt' C purposes but not expended dunng the period is shown'in the relevant
. funds on the balance sheet. Where income ‘is received in advance of meeting any performance-

related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recoghition is deferred

and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related condmons are met, Where

entitlement occurs before income is recelved the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognlsed in full in the statement of financial actlvmes in the year for whrch
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from mcome and recognrsed as
a liability. . .

r.!

. - Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entrtlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the. restricted fixed asset fund. Capital

_ .grants are recogmsed when there is entrtlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
.which they. are expended

.- Sponsorshlp Income _

Sponsorship income provrded to the Academy whrch amounts to a’ donatlon is recognrsed in the™
statement of financial activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured rehabty

Donations

Donations are recogmsed on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related condmons)j o

where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Aoademy)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is |mpract|cal to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recogmsed as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance

with the Academy’s accounting policies. '

1.4 Expenditure
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
‘ (A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

1.5

1.6

' Accounting policies (continued)

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly

“to that activity. Shared costs which. contribute to more than one activity-and support costs which are

not attributable to a single activity are apportloned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and deprecuatlon
charges. allocated on the port:on of the asset s use.

Expendlture on raising tunds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
meludee_ costs of all fundraising act|v!ttes events and non-charitable trading..

Cheritableactlvlties h

These are costs incurred on the Academy’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy apportloned to charitable activities.

lntetest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposnt is: mcluded when recelvable and the amount can be measured
reliably -by the Academy; this is normally. upon notification of the interest pald or payable by the
institution: wnth whom the funds are deposnted

Tangible fixed. assets | c

Assets costing £250 or more are capltahsed as tangible fixed assets and are camed at cost, net of ,

) deprec1at|on and any provusuon for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requmng the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset

fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on .

the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestncted funds, deprecuatlon on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

18

1.9

Tangible fixed assets (continued)
Depreciation is.provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line

Fumiture and equipment - 20% straight line
Computer equipment . - 25% straight line
‘Assets under construction . - Not depreciated

" Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on theseé assets is not charged '

until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recogmsed as impairments. impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settiement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank énd in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settliement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy

_anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
_goods or services it must provrde

1.10 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial mstruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade. and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments .
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are

measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in‘
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial

_ liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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" BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
{A company limited by guarantee)

. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued) . -

1.1 Pensione

- . Retirement benefits to employees of the Acadei'ny are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme

("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). Thes_e-are defined beneﬁt schemes. .

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are

~ determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospectlve

unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multu-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers.. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

_ The LGPS is a funded multi-emplbyer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the

Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retumn on a high quality corporate bond of -
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and

" curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs. as incurred. Net interest on the net defined

benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated .
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to

. discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets

and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and Iosses.

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the dlscretlon of the Trustees

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capltal purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acqqlred or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Departmenit for Education Group. :

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

-~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' “FOR'THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estirhates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical’ ekpenence and other
factors, including expectatlons of future events that are believed to be ‘reasonable under the
circumstances. S

Critical accounting estimates and 'assumptidns:

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
- estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and
.assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
~ assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pensmn Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
“number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using -a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial

* . valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31

August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full -
e actuanal valuation would impact on the carrymg amount of the pensnon liability. ‘

B |ncom6 from donations and capital grants

" Restricted

Unrest'rlcted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021

£000 ~ £000 £000 £000

Donations : oo .12 24 - 36
Capital Grants S . - . 1,026 1,026
12 24 1,026 1,062 .

A Restricted )

Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2020 2020 2020 2020

. £000 £000 £000 £000

Donations ' ' 10 19 - | 29
Capital Grants : - - 27 27
10 19 27 56
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(Acompany limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Funding for the Academy's Educational Operations

Restricted Total
funds funds
2021 2021
T : T £000 £000
_DfE/ESFA grants T A -
+".. General Annual Grant R AR T 978 978
Other DE/ESFA grants L cRe T ‘
Rates Reclaim S o . 4. 4
Pupil Premium and Service Premium . “ ‘ . 52 52
* Universal Infant Free Schoo!l Meals (UiFSM) - C 45 45
PE and Sports Grant _ S I 18 - - 18
Other DfE and ESFA* e . 83 83 .
Local Authority - Special Educational Needs(SEN) B - 24 24
Local Authority - Early Years A R : o107 107
Other Income I e ' 33 .33

1,344 1,34

1344 - 1,344

"+ * Included within Other DfE and ESFA above. is £31,057 (2020: £9,471) of fundlng received in respect of
. exceptional costs mcurred due to COVID-19 A .
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
. (A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Funding for the Académy's Educational Operations (continued)

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant
Other DfE/ESFA granfs '
Rates Reclaim =~~~
Pupil Premium and Service Premium
. Universal Infant Free School Meals (UiFSM)
PE and Sports Grant .
Other DfE and ESFA .

- Local Authority - Special Educational Needs (SEN)
Local Authority - Early Years '
Other Government Revenue Grants:

Other Income . ' '

— : ' 'ke'stﬁcted

Total

funds funds
2020 2020
£000 £000
915 . . 915
2 .2
50 50
40 40
18 18
59 59
27 27
131, 131

. 6 6

27 27
1,275 1,275
1,275 1,275

" Following the recléssiﬁcatii_'m iﬁ-the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the academy’s funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals
and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separate lines

under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.
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. BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income from other trading activities . ‘

Unrestricted Restricted fotal :
funds funds funds
2021 2021 - 2021
" £000 £000 £000 . .
-Supply reimbursement o ’ L " 10 10
Before & after school club income ' 30 - - : . 30
Tripe and other student income: ‘ _ . - 9. 9
Rentalincome . . . -4 - 4
Preschool income s ~ 36 ' - 36
Secondmentincome -~ - . . N 52 .62
70 71 14
Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds -
- 2020 2020 - 2020
£000 " £000 -£000
. Shpply feimbdr'semént.‘ L - 14 14
‘Before & after school club income A 22 - 22
Trip and other student income ' - 15 15
Rentalincome T ' o 2 - 2
Preschool income ' , : 17 . - 17
Secondment income ‘ = - A 110 . 110

- Windrush income 1 - - 1

42 - 139 181
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'BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

- (A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

: Diret_:t costs

Expenditure
Staff Costs Premisds Other Total
2021 2021 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on raising voluntary income:’ '
Direct costs _ 139 - - 139
‘Direct costs - Activities (Activity 1): '
Direct costs . 972 - 128 1,100
Allocated support costs - 218 16 259 493
1,329 16 387 1,732
i . Staff Costs Premisas * Other Total
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 - £000 £000
' Expenditure on raisiﬁg voluntary income: .
Direct costs o A 129 - - 129
Direct costs - Activities (Activity 1): _ e
Direct costs ' 970 - 100 1,070
Allocated support costs P 204 . 135 , 91 430
1,303 - 135 191 1,629
Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities
‘Summ_ary by fund type
Restricted Total
. funds . funds
2021 2021
. £000 £000
1,594

1,594
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

" (A company llmlted by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGU

ST 2021

Anaiysis of expenditure on charitable activities (continued)

Suinmary by fund type (continued)

* Direct costs

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Unrestnicted
funds
2020
£000

173-

Activities

- undertaken

"' Directcosts

" Direct costs

_ directly

2021 -

£000

1,100

Activities
undertaken
- directly

- 2020

£000

. 1,070

Restricted
funds
2020

- £000 -

1,327 .

Support
costs
2021

£000

493

Support
‘costs
2020
£000

430

- Total

funds
- 2020
£000

1,500

Total
funds
2024
£000

1,593

Total
funds

2020 .

£000

1,500
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. BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

3

.. .. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. - .. FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysls of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs

Depreciation -

Staff Expenses.

" Educational Supplies

" Educational Consultancy

Other Staff Costs .
InSU(anpe
Other

Pension finance costs - -

- Staff costs
- . Depreciation -

Staff Expenses
Educational Supplies

Educational Consultahcy.. ,

Other Staff Costs
Insurance
Other

Activities
2021

| £000. ..

972 972
SRR RO P
22 .« .22 -
3 S
. 8.
43 .

Total
funds
2021

| £000-

L1100

..1,100. .

" Total

% Activities” " 'funds
© 2020 2020
£000 £000
Wi 970 970
S [ 10
2 12
15 15
10 10

1,070,

G 1,070, .
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'BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
* FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysis of expéndlture by activities (continued)

- ‘Analysis of support costs

Staff costs
Depreciation
Insurance
Technology Césts
Other : A
Maintenance of Premises
Cleaning and Caretaking
~ Rates - .
"Energy
Catering ,
 Other Premises Costs o : -
- Legal & Professional o '
- Auditor Costs '

: Total
Activities - funds
2021 2021
£000 . £000
217 217
99 99
6 6

5 5

3 3

6 6
27 27
12 - 12
18 18
51 51
10 10
30 30
9 9
493 493
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PR]MARY ACADEMY
. (A company limited by guarantes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Analysis of expenditure by actiyitieé (continued)

Arialysls of support costs (continued)

_ : ~ Total

Activities funds

2020 2020

£000 - £000

Staff costs ' ' 203 - . - 203

Depreciation o ' o 65 65

Insurance . . L S 7

Technology Costs -~ . ... - - A : ‘ 6 6

Other : ‘ , : - -5 5

Maintenance of Premises A - . 9 9
Cleaning and Caretaking - ... . : ' oo 28 23 .

Energy .- B 16 16

Catering . , o 8 38

Other Premises Costs o o ' : 13 13

-Legal & Professional : - - 43 43

Auditor Costs e : . , ‘ o9 9

" 430 430
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER .PRlMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
"~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit

- other services

2021 )

£000
11

2020

- £000

75
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BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY

(A company limited by guarantee)

. NOTES TO: THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10.

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year'were as fdllo’ws_:"

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs

b. Staff numbers

The average number of pers‘ons employed'by the Academy during the year was as follows:

Management

. Teachers

Admin and subport

The average headcount exbressed as full-time equivalents was:

Manégement’ '
Teachers
Admin and support T

c. Higher paid staff

2020 -

© 2021
£000 £000
947 931
. 69 68
313 302
© 1,329 1,301
" -
1,329 1,303
2021 2020
. No. No.
2 2
15 16
30 32
47 50
2021 2020
No. No.
2 2
12 13
20 20
34 35
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' BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10.

Staff (continued)
* The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludlng employer pension costs) exceeded
£60, 000 was:
2021 2020
A _ No. No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 N : - B
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 : - - P 1. -

- Inciuded in the above is 1 staff member who participates in the Teachers' Pension Scheme. During the

year ended 31 August 2021 the contributions for this staff member were £16,752 (2020: £16,659)

d. Key managément personnel

- » The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management

11.

' Officer .

*"team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
" contributions and employer national insurance contributions) recenved by key management personnel for .

their services to the Academy was £272,819 (2020 - £264,398). -

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

" .One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
- with the Academy. The principal-and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
-they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of Trustees' remuneration and 'other benefits was as follows:

2021 2020

o : £000 £000
I Mr J Jones, Head Teacher/Chief Accounting Remuneratlon ' ‘ 70-75 70-75
e Pension contributions pald 15-20 15-20
* .« Ms V Browning ‘Remuneration - : 15-20 15-20
Ao Pension contributions paid 0-§ 0-5
- Ms$S Oughton Remuneration ‘ : 0-5 10- 15
e Pension contributions paid 0-5 0-5
~ < Mrs T Teague , Staff Governor (appointed 1  Remuneration : .. 40-45 40-45
September 2020)
- . : Pension contributions paid 10-15 10-15 -
** Mrs'J Kilbey (resigned 23 September 2020) Remuneration ‘ 20-25 20-25
' : ‘ ' Pension contributions paid 5-10 0-5

. Duiring the year ended 31 August 2021, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2020 - £NIL).
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'~ 12. Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

In. accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy has purchased insurance to protect ,
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negllgent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. It is not possible to
quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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Tangible fixed assets '

———— —————————— S—————— E——————— eA—————
s ——— B —— I ———————

Long-term Assets Furniture
leasehold under and Computer '
property construction equipment equipment - - Total
’ £000 £000 £000 £0600 . £000
_ Cost or valuation - ~ ' |
At 1 September 2020 . 3,206 309 175 78 3,768
. Additions - . 1,000 - . 165 7 1472
Transfers between classes =~ - (309) 309 - .
At 31 August 2021 a206 - - 649 85 4,940
Depreciation Co e _ .
At 1 September 2020 - - 170 .. S L A 53 380
Charge for the year . o "55".',‘."‘ . © 44 : 11 110
At 31 August 2021 ‘ 225 , - 201 64 490
Net book value _ '
At 31 August 2021 © ag8t .. - a8 o 4,450
At 31 August 2020 | 3037 309 18 25 3389

Non-depreciable land of £1,405,000 (20205 £1 305 ,000) is shown'as leasehold property.

The long-term leasehold property is held under a 125 year lease from Gloucestershire County Council,
active from 1st February 2013. , , o

Debtors
2021 . 2020
£000 £000
Due within one year '
Trade debtors. TS - . 2 8
Other debtors - _ 2 6
P(epayments and accrued income . 39 70
43 84
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15.

16.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

145

2021 2020

‘ ' _ £000 £000

Trade creditors : o.M 73
Other taxation and social security . . . ' . 43 -

- Accruals and deferred income - S y ‘ . 61 65

138

in the year, resources were deferred for staff recharges specialist services mvonced and also the free

school meals and rates rellef grants.-

Financial instruments

2021
£000-

Financial assets : ,
Financial assets measured at fair value through income and expenditure 142

Financial assets measured at fair value through income and expenditure comprise....

2020

£000

238
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17. VStat~ement of funds

Balance at 1 ' _ : o Balance at

September Transfers Gains/ © 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure . infout {Losses) - 2021
A £000 £OOQ : £000 £000 £000 £000
. Unrestricted - ' '
funds
" OSC & Holiday - | | o . |
Cub . 14 30 (33) 26 P e 37
. Donations Coe 2 . - 12 - - -
Rising Stars ‘ - - 36 T (36) - - -
Rental-income _ - 4 - ' (4) - .
14 82 - (33) (26) e oA
Restricted -
general funds 4 S . _
GAG e 978  (1,026) a8 - .
Pupil Premium - ' 52 (52) - - - -
UIFSM - 45 (45) - - - e
PE & Sports : oo S . .
Grant . - - 18 (18) T A -
Rates.Reclaim - - 4 (@) - - .
Other DfE/ESFA - ' 83 (83) - - ‘ -
LA Early Years 23 106 @qony @ - - -
LASEN - 524 C(2¢) - -
. Trip & Other : ' . S -
Student Income ' - : 9 © e -
Other Income - i - 30 -(30) - : - I
Secondment _ ’ o . . ’
Income - 52 (52) - C . - - ' -
Donations - ‘24 (24) . . : .
Supply S ' | :
"Reimbursement - - 13 13) < - -
Pension reserve (7139 - - - - (102) . (229) ~ {1,085)

T11) 1,438 (1,589) . 26 (229)  (1,065)
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17.

Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted fixed
asset funds '
Class i
Restricted Funds : St et
- all funds 3,390 - (111 - 1171 - e 4,450
DFC ' - 7 - - (8) 4 2
Heaithy Pupils o : el L
Capital Fund 137 - - - {137) RERREIEUNE - .
Other capital Sl lenom Ly :
gi'ants 10 19 - (29) T ST -

" Donated assets . , - 1,000 .- (1,000) e -

3,537 102 (111) . - 4,452

Total Restricted ' . T A
funds - 2,826 T 2,464 (1,700) 26 : (229) 3,387
Total funds 2,840 2546 . (1,733) .

— ————— S———— S—— S——————— S———
_ . ee—_——— e em— e/, e

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are-as follows:

GAG Fund - This fund represents grants received for the Academy’s operatlonal actlvmes andA ‘
development.

Pupll Premium - Funding from the ESFA to support d:sadvantaged puplls of-all abllmes to. perforrn and v s

close the gp between them and their peers.
UIFSM - Grant income received to cover the provision of school meals for eligable children.

PE & Sports Grant -‘funding towards the provision of physical education. Tmtognaielen s e

Local Authority Early Years - Grants received from the Local Authority to contribute towards the academy’s ="~

early years provision.

Local Authority SEN - Grants received from the Local Authority to contribute towards the provision of
education for pupils with special educational needs.

Trip Income - contributions made towards the Academy's educational visits.

Secondment Income - Funds received by the academy for the provision of staff member's services to
other schools.

Supply Reimbursement - monies received from the insurance provider for staff adsence.
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Statement ot funds (continued)

‘Under the fundmg agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a Timit on the

amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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17.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted
funds

OSC & Holiday

- Club

Donations
Rising Stars
Nurture Rocom
Rental income

-Restricted

general funds

GAG
Pupil Premium
UIFSM

PE & Sports
Grant

Rates Reclaim
Other DfE/ESFA
LA Early Years
LA SEN

Trip & Other
Student Income
Other Income

Secondment
Income

Donations

Supply
Reimbursement
Other
Government
Revenue

Pension reserve

Balance at - ' Balance at
.1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
- 2019 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2020
£000- - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 . -
7 23 (33) 17 - 14
- 10 - (10) - - "
- 17 - (17) - -
- 1 - (1) - -
- 2 - (2) - -
7 53 (33) (13 . 14
) 915 (943) 28 . ;
- 50 (50) - - -
- 40 (40) - - -
. 18 (18) - - -
- 2 (2 - - -
- 59 (59) - - -
9 131 . (96) - (22) - 2
- 27 (27) . - -
- 15 (15) - - -
- 27 (27) - - -
- 110 (110 - - -
- 19 (19) - - -
- 14 (14) - - -
- 6 (6) - - -
(639) - {95) - 1 (733)
(630) 1,433 (1,521) 6 1 (711)




" BOURTON-ON-THE-WATER PRIMARY ACADEMY
(A company limited by guarantee)-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT_S -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Statement of funds (continued)

———— — S———— Se— e ————————— f——
—_—————————— e e e Emm——

Restricted fixed

asset funds

Class Il

Restricted Funds - _ ' ‘

- all funds ‘ . 3,435 . .- (75) - 20 - 3,380

DFC ‘ 6 7 . .- (13) - -

Healthy Pupils. ‘ § : : .
~ Capital Fund 137 - - o - ' - _ - 137
. Other capital ‘ N o ‘ ‘ ‘

grants - 20 - - - o ' 20

sz 27 (7). 7 - 3,537

 Total Restricted . . o ' o '
" funds : 2,948 1,460 (1,596) ~13 - 1 2,826

Total funds 2955 . 1513 (1,629) - 1 2840

Total funds analysis by acadein‘y

’ .

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

2029 = 2020

) £000 - “£000
Bourton-on-the-Water Primafy Academy o : .37 37
. Restricted fixed asset fund . - , : 4,452 3537
' Pension reserve o - Lo O -(1,065) " (734)
Total o S ‘ _ 3424 . 2840
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18.

Analysis of net assets between funds

’ Analysls of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted v
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets ; - - 4450 4,450
Current assets . ' A 37 146 .2 185
Creditors due within one year - (145) - (145)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . ~ (1,065) - (1,065) -
Difference - S - (1) - 1
Total : o 37 (1.065) - 4,452 3,424
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
' . Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds © funds funds funds
.2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - . 3,389 3,389
Current assets L 13 161 148 322
Creditors due within one year . - (139) - (139)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (734) - (734)
Total 13- (712) - 3,537 2:838
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18.

- 20.

21.

2021 2020
£000 £000
Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as ber statement .of financial
" ¢ activities) . : , A SR - 813 (114)
Adjustments for:
" Depreciation ) ' ‘ S 111 75
. Capital grants from DfE and other capital income ' (24) (27)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors g ’ ‘ 41 - (6
" - Increase in creditors T : 8 8
. FRS 102 adjustments ' A : 102 97
" Net g:ash provided by operating activities N -~ 1,081 33
- Gash flows from investing activities
2021 - 2020
£000 £000
" Purchase of tangible fixed assets PR 0 (1,172) (29)
Capital grants from DfE Group , ' : R 24 27
" Net cash used In investing activities e - .. (1,148)
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents =~ ;... -
. 2021 2020
. £000 £000-
Cash in hand and ‘at bank I . 142 238
' Tetal cash and cash equivalents S Lo L 142 238

- Reconciiiation of net Incomel(_expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

@ . -
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22.

i

Analysis of ehanges in net debt:

At1

' September At 31

- 2020 .Cash flows August 2021

) £000 £000 - £000

Cash at bank and in hand ' ' 238 (96) 142
238 “ (96) 142

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pénsuon Scheme

~ England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff,- and the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS).for non-teachmg staff whzch is managed by Hymans Robertson. Both are multt-employer defined

benefit schemes

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to: the penod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019. . )

; There were no eutstanding or prepaid contributions at eitner the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme::

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academles All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

~ The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer Returement and other pension
benefits are pald by publlc funds prov;ded by Parllament
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)
‘Valua'tion of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scherne valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Educatlon on 5-March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consuitation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensnonable pay (mcludmg a 0.08% administration
levy)

e total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at'the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current

SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earmnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
' assumed nominal rate-of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from-1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £128,835 (2020 - £123,596). .

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is ‘on the Teachers' Pensions website
(hitps:/www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/201 9f04lteachers-pensions-valuation-report aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer pension scheme. The E
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

. Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £118,000 (2020 -
£110,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £96,000 (2020 - £90,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 22,000 (2020 - £20,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 25.8

- per cent for employers and 5.6 per cent for employees

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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23,

Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions -

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in paymen'tﬁnﬂatio'n
Discount rate for scheme liabilities )

2021

. %
- 3.20
290

1.65

2020
%

2.50
2.20
1.70

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mbrta,lity rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males

Females
Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

" Discount rate -0.5%

Salary increase rate +0.5%
Pension increase rate +0.5%

Share of scheme assets

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

" Corporate bondé :

Property
Cash-and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

2021 2020
Years Years
21.9 217
24.3 - 239
22,9 224
26,0 25.3
2021 2020
£000 £000
310 233
25 20
280 - 209
2021 2020
£000 £000
926 671
278 234
93 81
26 31
1,323 1,017
. ,
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)
The actual retum on schemé assets was £251,370 (2020 - £9,000).

The amounts recognised in the Staterﬁent of financial activities are as follows:

2020

2021
£000 £000
‘.= Current service cost (185) (173)
. Past service cost L. (5)
. Interest income 18 T 17
“x+ Interest cost - A (31) (29)
Adjustment to past service cost ‘e 5
s Total ah_ipunt recognised in the Statement of fihancial activities (198) (185)
' Changes in the bresent value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
- 2021 2020
‘ ' £000 £000
At 1 September 1,750 1,539
Interest cost C o3 29
Employee contributions 22 20
* Actuarial losses " 413 8
".. Benefits paid (14) (19)
Current service cost 185 173
At 31 August 2,387 1,750
Changes in the fair value of the Academy’s share of scheme assets were as follows:
‘ 2021 2020
£000 £000
At 1 September . 1,017 900
Interest income 18 17
“ Actuarial gains 184 9
* .Employer contributions 96 90
" Employee contributions 22 -20
Benefits paid (14) (19)
At 31 August 1,323 1,017
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- 28,

26.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2021 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020

_ £000 - £000
Not later than 1 year ‘ , , 5 5

- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years , . 1 6

6 11

Members liabllity

Each member of the charitable company undettakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the

~ event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a

member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding ENIL for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party ti'ansactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with orgamsatlons in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies.Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.
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